
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ  

  
  

please ask for Helen Bell 

direct line 0300 300 4040 

date 11 January 2013  

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Date & Time 

Tuesday, 22 January 2013 at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Venue at 

Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs L Birt, C C Gomm and Mrs M Mustoe 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: Cllrs R D Berry, D Bowater, I Dalgarno, Mrs D B Green, 
K Janes, R B Pepworth, A Shadbolt, I Shingler and N Warren 
 
(Bold text indicates substitute Members who will act as Full Members on 
this Sub Committee on this occasion) 

 
All other Members of the Council - on request 

 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. Welcome 
  

2. Apologies for Absence  
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 

3. Members' Interests  
  

To receive from Members any declarations of interest. 
 

4. Licensing Procedure 
 (attached) 

 
5. Licensing Objectives 
 (attached) 

 

 
Report 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

6. LICENSING ACT 2003 - A hearing called to 
determine an application for a review of a premises 
licence for The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street, 
Ampthill, MK45 2NG 

*  23 - 112 

 



   

Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House, Monks Walk  
Chicksands, Shefford, Beds  
SG17 5TQ 

 

Telephone 0300 300 8000 

Email info@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Procedure for the hearing of applications 
The Licensing Act 2003 

 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Public Protection 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands 
Shefford 
SG17 5TQ 

 
0300 300 8000 

Agenda Item 4
Page 3



 2 of 18  

 
Licensing Sub-Committee Procedure for 

Determining applications under the Licensing Act 2003 
 
 
CONTENTS 
 

1. Introduction 
2. General Principles 

 
PRE-HEARING 
 

3. Licensing Panels 
4. Timescales for Convening a Hearing 
5. Notice of Hearing 
6. Persons to be Notified of a Hearing 
7. Contents of Notice 
8. Hearings to be open to the public 
9. Failure to attend the hearing 
10. Disruptive behaviour 

 
SUB - COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

11. Licensing Sub-Committee agenda  
 

HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
12. Opening the Hearing 
13. Licensing Officer’s Report 
14. Licensing Authority’s request(s) for clarification 
15. Presentation of Case / Submissions from Parties 
16. Modification or Withdrawal of Application or Representation 
17. Closing Submissions 
18. Legal Advice 
19. Committee Decision in Relation to Procedure 
20. Determination of the Application 
 

POST HEARING 
 
21. Record of Proceedings 
22. Irregularities 
23. Decision Notice 
24. Appeals 
25. Closing the Hearing 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee Checklist 
Appendix ‘A’ 
Appendix ‘B’ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 4



 3 of 18  

Introduction 
 
1.1. The Licensing Act 2003 has placed local authorities at the centre of the decision 

making process for regulating the sale and supply of alcohol, provision of regulated 
entertainment and late night refreshment. 

 
1.2. This document and the procedures detailed herein are based upon the guidance 

issued by the Local Government Regulation Service and with regards to the 
provisions of: 

 

• the Licensing Act 2003; 
 

• the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport on 7 
July 2004 under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; and 

 

• The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended). 
 
1.3. This guidance is intended for all concerned in any way whatsoever with a hearing 

before a licensing panel (Licensing Sub-committee, the Licensing Committee or 
Council, as may be the case) in relation to the determination of applications under 
the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
2. General Principles 
 
2.1. All Members sitting on the determination of an application will always: 

 

• promote the right of all parties to have a fair hearing; 
 

• only have regard to such of the four licensing objectives that are subject to a 
relevant representation, namely: 

 

• the prevention of crime and disorder; 
 

• public safety; 
 

• the prevention of public nuisance; and 
 

• the protection of children from harm; 
 

• have regard to the Licensing Act 2003 and any relevant secondary legislation; 
 

• have regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy; 
 

• have regard to the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media 
and Sport under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; 

 

• treat each application on its own merits; and 
 

• undertake its decision-making responsibilities honestly and fairly, in an open, 
transparent and accountable way. 

Agenda Item 4
Page 5



 4 of 18  

PRE-HEARING 
 
3. Licensing Panels 
 
3.1. Generally, hearings will take place before a Licensing Sub-committee consisting of 

three Members of the Licensing Committee, although, to avoid unnecessary 
adjournments, a fourth Member may attend as a substitute Member. 

 
3.2. If, for any reason whatsoever, it is not possible to have a matter determined by a 

Licensing Sub-Committee, the matter would be heard by the Licensing Committee.  
A Licensing Committee must consist of between ten and fifteen Members and at 
least one half of those Members must attend for a hearing to proceed before the 
Licensing Committee. 

 
3.3. In the highly unlikely event of it not being possible, for any reason whatsoever, to 

have a matter determined by either a Licensing Sub-committee or the Licensing 
Committee, the matter would be heard by Council.   

 
 
4. Timescales for Convening a Hearing 
 
4.1. Most hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 must normally take place within 20 

working days from the last date in which representations can be made. There are 
exceptions to this rule. 

 
4.2. Exceptions: 
 

4.2.1. A hearing must take place within 10 working days of the Authority 
receiving notification of a review of the premises following a closure order; 

 
4.2.2. A hearing must take place within 7 working days from the day after the end 

of the period within which the police can object to a temporary event 
notice; 

 
4.2.3. A hearing must take place within 5 working days beginning the day after 

the end of the last day for the police to object to an interim authority notice. 
 

4.3. Hearings may be dispensed with where all relevant persons agree a hearing is 
unnecessary. 

 
5. Notice of Hearing 
 
5.1. Generally 10 clear days notice will be given of a hearing. There are exceptions to 

this rule. 
 

5.2. Exceptions: 
 

5.2.1. 5 days notice will be given of a hearing for a review of a premises licence 
following a closure order; 

 
5.2.2. 2 days notice will be given of a hearing following police objection to an 

interim authority notice; 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 6



 5 of 18  

5.2.3. 2 days notice will be given of a hearing following police objection to 
temporary events notice. 

 
6. Persons to be Notified of a Hearing 
 
6.1. The following persons must be notified of a hearing: 

 
6.1.1. Any applicant for any licence, provisional statement or review; 
 
6.1.2. Premises user who submitted a temporary event notice; 
 
6.1.3. Any person who has made relevant representations; 
 
6.1.4. Any Responsible Authority; and 
 
6.1.5. Where an application is made for a review, the holder of a premises 

licence or club premises certificate. 
 
7. Contents of Notice 
 
7.1. The notice of a hearing must contain: 

 
7.1.1. The date, time and place of the hearing; 
 
7.1.2. The procedure to be followed at the hearing; 
 
7.1.3. The right of a party to attend and to be assisted or represented by any 

person whether legally qualified or not; 
 
7.1.4. Any points upon which the authority considers that it will want clarification 

from a party at the hearing; 
 
7.1.5. The right of the party to provide additional information to provide any 

clarification sought by the Authority; 
 
7.1.6. The consequences of failing to attend the hearing or not being 

represented at the hearing; 
 
7.1.7. Any information the Licensing Authority has received in support or 

opposition of the application. 
 
8. Hearings to be open to the public 
 
8.1. Hearings will generally be open to the public as the Licensing Authority is 

committed to taking decisions in an honest, accountable and transparent way, but 
on occasions a licensing panel may find it necessary to exclude a party or parties, 
the public and press from all or any part of a hearing. 

 
8.2. A panel will only pass an exclusion resolution where it considers that the public 

interest in doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the 
hearing, taking place in public.  Such decisions will be made on an individual basis. 

 

Agenda Item 4
Page 7



 6 of 18  

8.3. The panel’s deliberations, which do not form part of the hearing, will be conducted 
in private.  The announcement of the panel’s decision is part of the hearing and will 
generally be open to the public, subject to any exclusion resolution. 

 
9. Failure to attend the hearing 
 
9.1. No party is obliged to attend a hearing, although the Licensing Authority 

encourages all parties to attend hearings to make their application or 
representation, as may be the case. 

 
9.2. Regardless of whether a party attends a hearing or not, the matter will generally be 

heard and determined by the licensing panel (the Council, the Licensing Committee 
or a Licensing Sub-committee).  At the hearing, the panel will consider any 
application, representation or notice made by an absent party in the same way as it 
will of any application, representation or notice made by a party that attends the 
hearing. 

 
9.3. If, however, the hearing is adjourned to a specified date, all parties will forthwith be 

notified of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned. 
 
10. Disruptive behaviour 
 
10.1. Any person who disrupts a hearing by the Council, the Licensing Committee or a 

Licensing Sub-committee of a matter under the Licensing Act 2003 may be required 
to leave the hearing. 

 
10.2. It is for the panel hearing the matter to decide whether such person will be permitted 

to return to the hearing, but should they be allowed to do so, this may be on such 
conditions as the panel may specify. 

 
10.3. If a disruptive person is a person who has a right to address the panel, then that 

person may, before the end of the hearing (i.e. before Stage 25 of the following 
procedure), put in writing any information they would have been entitled to give 
orally, had they not been required to leave the hearing. 

 

Agenda Item 4
Page 8



 7 of 18  

SUB - COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
11. Licensing Sub-Committee agenda  
 
11.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing shall be commenced in accordance with the 

Licensing Sub-Committee agenda. Any Committee matters shall be addressed at 
this stage. 

 
11.2. The Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing procedure shall take over at the point at 

which the agenda item is called to be heard. 
 
11.3. The Sub-Committee agenda shall deal with the issue of exclusion of press and 

public for the Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing. 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 9



 8 of 18  

HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
12. Opening the Hearing 
 
12.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing shall be formally opened by the Chair. 

 
12.2. The Chair shall introduce Members of the licensing panel (a Licensing Sub-

committee, the Licensing Committee or Council), officers present and all other 
parties present. 

 
12.3. The Chair shall explain the procedure to be followed at the meeting and the nature 

of the decision to be taken by the panel. 
 
13. Licensing Officer’s Report 
 
13.1. The Licensing Officer presents his / her Report, including an outline of the 

application, the representation(s) and any points upon which the Licensing Authority 
has given notice that it required clarification; and identifies anything relevant in the 
legislation, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the statutory guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport. 

 
13.2. Members of the panel may ask questions of the Licensing Officer with regards to 

the Report. 
 
14. Licensing Authority’s request(s) for clarification  
 
14.1. If points of clarification have been asked for, the Chair invites the Licensing Officer 

or relevant party to provide necessary information. 
 
14.2. Members of the panel may ask questions with regards to the further information 

provided. 
 
15. Presentation of Case / Submissions from Parties 
  
15.1. In the order of Applicant, Responsible Authority and Interested Party (or in the case 

of a review the relevant person), each party shall be invited to undertake the 
following: 

 
15.1.1. Set out their case; 

 
15.1.2. Call Witnesses in support of their case (provided notification of the 

witnesses has previously been given to the Council); 
 
15.1.3. Introduce documentary evidence in support of their case (provided 

notification of the documentary evidence has previously been given to the 
Council); and 

 
15.1.4. Respond to any questions asked of them by Members of the Licensing 

Panel. 
 

15.2. At the Sub-Committee and Chair’s discretion each party may ask questions of other 
parties by directing them through the Chair. 

 

Agenda Item 4
Page 10



 9 of 18  

15.3. The Sub-Committee shall have the absolute discretion to restrict the number of 
witnesses and documents that any party can introduce, or the time spent on 
submissions or oral evidence, to ensure the proper running of the hearing. 

 
15.4. Any witnesses that any party is seeking to call that have not previously been 

notified to the Council, in advance of the hearing, shall only be allowed with the 
consent of all other parties at the hearing. The Sub-Committee shall have the sole 
discretion to refuse to allow any witnesses to be heard, even where the consent of 
all parties has been given. In reaching the decision the Sub-Committee may 
consider any circumstances they believe to be relevant, and will have regard to the 
relevance of the evidence to the matters before the Committee. 

 
15.5. Any documents that any party is seeking to adduce that have not previously been 

notified to the Council, in advance of the hearing, shall only be allowed with the 
consent of all other parties at the hearing. The Sub-Committee shall have the sole 
discretion to refuse to allow any documents to be adduced, even where the consent 
of all parties has been given. In reaching the decision the Sub-Committee may 
consider any circumstances they believe to be relevant, and will have regard to the 
relevance of the evidence to the matters before the Committee. 

 
16. Modification or Withdrawal of Application or Representation 
 
16.1. The Chair shall ask the applicant whether the applicant wishes to modify the 

application (e.g. by way of withdrawing a licensable activity and / or reducing the 
times asked for and / or volunteering additional steps to promote the licensing 
objectives). 

 
16.2. The Chair shall ask each party making a representation whether such party would 

like to withdraw their representation. 
 
17. Closing Submissions 
 
17.1. The Chair shall invite each of the parties to present a closing submission to the 

Sub-Committee. 
 
17.2. The Chair shall invite the Licensing Officer to make any final representations. 
 
17.3. At the end of the Closing Submissions the Chairman may ask the Legal Advisor if 

there is any clarification or points they wish to make. 
 
18. Legal Advice 
 
18.1. The role of the Legal Advisor is to provide Members with advice on: 
 

• Questions of law; 
 

• Matters of practice and procedure; 
 

• The options available to the sub-committee in making their decision; 
 

• Whether information or evidence is relevant to the licensing objectives; 
 

• Any relevant case law or guidelines. 

Agenda Item 4
Page 11



 10 of 18  

 
18.2. The hearing shall be directed by the Chair and assisted by the Legal Advisor as 

appropriate and necessary. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 12



 11 of 18  

19. Committee Decision in Relation to Procedure 
 
19.1. The Sub-Committee shall be entitled to vary the order and procedure for the 

hearing, at its absolute discretion. 
 

20. Determination of the Application 
 
20.1. After all representations have been heard, the Chair will inform all parties that the 

panel will retire in private to determine the matter. 
 

20.2. Either the panel will retire alone to a private room or all parties, officers and 
members of the public will be required to leave the room, although the panel may 
invite their legal adviser to join them for the purpose of providing only legal advice - 
the details of which will be disclosed upon the hearing reconvening. 

 
20.3. Should the sub-committee need to ask any further questions of any party, all parties 

shall be invited to return for the purposes of asking and answering questions. 
 
20.4. Where the hearing is for: 
 

• a review of a premises licence following a closure order;  

• a personal licence by holder of a justices licence; or  
• a counter notice following police objection to a temporary event notice. 

  
 The Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of the meeting. 

 
20.5. For all other hearings the determination must be made within 5 working days of the 

hearing. The Sub-Committee will generally announce the determination at the end 
of the hearing. 

 
20.6. The Sub-Committee may consider adding any conditions necessary in order to 

promote one or more of the four licensing objectives: 
 

• the prevention of crime and disorder; 
 

• public safety; 
 

• the prevention of public nuisance; and 
 

• the protection of children from harm. 
 
20.7. All decisions shall be made in line with the general principles as detailed in 

Appendix A, the range of options available for determining each type of application. 
 
20.8. The Sub-Committee shall complete the decision notice as shown at Appendix B. 
 
20.9. The hearing will reconvene and the Chair will either: 
 

• announce the Sub-Committee determination including reasons for the 
determination; or 

 

• advise those persons present that the Sub-Committee has not reached a 
decision, but will make a determination as soon as it can and, in any event, 

Agenda Item 4
Page 13



 12 of 18  

within five working days. All parties will then be notified forthwith of the 
decision. 

 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 14



 13 of 18  

POST HEARING 
 
21. Record of Proceedings 
 
21.1. The authority shall ensure that a record is taken of the hearing. 

 
21.2. The record shall be kept for a period of six years from the date of the final action on 

the matter. 
 
22. Irregularities 
 
22.1. Proceedings shall be rendered void due to a failure to comply with the procedures 

set out in this document. 
 

22.2. Any failure to comply with the Hearing Regulations shall not render the process or 
the decision void. 

 
22.3. Where the Authority considers any person to have been prejudiced from the 

irregularity it shall take such steps as it considers fit to remedy the irregularity, 
before reaching its determination. 

 
22.4. Clerical mistakes may be corrected by the Authority. 
 
23. Decision Notices 
 
23.1. The Authority shall provide a written notice of its determination as soon as 

practicable after the hearing and within 5 working days. 
 
24. Appeals 
 
24.1. An appeal against the determination of the Authority must be made to the 

appropriate Magistrates Court within 21 days of the date of delivery of the decision. 
 

25. Closing the Hearing 
  

25.1. The Chair shall thank all parties for attending and draw the hearing to a close. 
 

25.2. Should there be another hearing to be heard the Sub-Committee shall begin the 
procedure again.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 15



 14 of 18  

Licensing Sub-Committee Checklist  
Procedure for determining applications under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Item 
 

  

1.  Chair to introduce Sub-Committee, Committee Administrator, 
other Officers and all Parties present. 
 

 

2.  Chair to explain procedure for hearing to all parties. 
  

 

3.  Licensing Officer to introduce application, including details of 
the premises, application, objections, references to the 
Licensing Objectives and Policy and Statutory Obligations. 
 

 

4.  Chair to invite Sub-Committee to ask any questions of the 
Licensing Officer, in relation to the report provided. 
 

 

5.  Chair to ask Licensing Officer whether there are any points 
requiring Clarification. 
 

 

Steps 6 to 9 to be completed for each party in the order of Applicant (A), 
Responsible Authority (RA) and Interested Party (IP) or Relevant Person 
(RP).   The chair will invite each party to: 

A RA IP/
RP 

6.  Set out their case 
 

   

7.  Call Witnesses in support of their case (provided notification 
of the witnesses has previously been given to the Council); 
 

   

8.  Introduce documentary evidence in support of their case 
(provided notification of the documentary evidence has 
previously been given to the Council); and 
 

   

9.  Respond to any questions asked of them by Members of the 
Licensing Panel. 
 

   

Repeat steps 6 to 9 for each party  

10.  At the Sub-Committee and Chair’s discretion each party may 
ask questions of other parties by directing them through the 
Chair. 
 

 

11.  Chair asks Applicant if they wish to modify or withdraw their 
application in any way. 
 

 

12.  Chair to invite closing submissions from applicant, 
responsible authorities and interested parties. 
 

 

13.  The Sub-Committee will retire into private to consider its 
decision. 
 

 

14.  Chair will announce the decision of the Sub-Committee and 
the reasons for the decision. The Chair will advise all parties 
of their right of appeal. 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 4
Page 16



 15 of 18  

Appendix ‘A’ 
 

Options for determining applications 
 
 
Determination of application for premises licence 
 

• To grant the licence 

• To grant with the addition of conditions necessary to promote any of the licensing 
objectives 

• To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 
application relates 

• To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 

• To reject the application 
 
Determination of application for variation of a premises licence 
 

• To grant the variation 

• To modify the conditions of the licence – this includes altering or omitting any 
existing condition or adding any new conditions 

• To reject the whole or part of the application 
 
Determination of application for review of a premises licence 
 

• To modify the conditions of the licence – this includes altering or omitting any 
existing condition or adding any new conditions 

• To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

• To remove the designated premises supervisor 

• To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 

• To revoke the licence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 17



 16 of 18  

 
Appendix ‘B’ 

 

 
 

 
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

 
DECISION NOTICE 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
DECISION OF THE LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Hearing  

 

Applicant’s Name:  

Premises Address:  

 

Application for:  

 
 

Reasons for Hearing:  

 
 

Members of the Licensing Sub-
Committee: 

 

 

Applicant:  

Person(s) Appearing on Behalf of the 
Applicant: 

 

 

Objector(s):  

Person(s) Appearing on Behalf of 
Objector(s): 

 

 

Other Persons Present:  

 
If appropriate: 

COMMENCEMENT DATE 

This licence will come into effect from:  
o The date of this decision 
 
o The end of the period for appeal. 
 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT  

Agenda Item 4
Page 18



 17 of 18  

The Sub-Committee made the following findings of fact: 
 

 

DECISION  
The Sub-Committee have decided that the application should be: 

o  Granted (as set out in the application) 
 

¤  Refused 
 

o  Amended to include the following conditions: 
 
1.  
 
2.  
 

• The Sub- Committee considers the additional conditions necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

• All Licences are granted subject to the mandatory conditions imposed by 
the Licensing Act, 2003. 

• In coming to its decision, the Sub-Committee has taken into account: 
 

o The Licensing Act Section 18, which states that it must take such 
steps it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; 

 
o The Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003; and 
 

o Central Bedfordshire Council’s Licensing Policy 
 

o The merits of the application and the representations (including 
supporting information) presented by all parties. 

 

REASONS FOR DECISION  
The reasons for the Committee’s decision are as follows: 

¤  Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 

o  Public Safety 

 

¤  Prevention of Public Nuisance 

 

o  Protection of Children from Harm 

 

¤  General – all four licensing objectives 

 

 

Irrelevant Representations 

The Sub-Committee determined that the following representations were 
irrelevant: Not applicable. 
 

Representation Reason Representation was 
Considered Irrelevant 

Agenda Item 4
Page 19



 18 of 18  

1.   
  
2.  

 

 

Right of Review 

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible 
authority, such as the Police or an interested party, such as a resident living in 
the vicinity of the premises may ask the licensing authority to review the 
licence because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of 
the four licensing objectives. The review is a request for the Council to look at 
the existing licence and decide whether its conditions are adequate to meet 
the four licensing objectives defined under the Licensing Act 2003.  

 

Effect of Failing to Comply with Conditions (Explained to Applicant) 

The Sub-Committee has explained to the applicant the effect of failure to 
comply with any of the conditions attached to the licence or certificate is a 
criminal offence, which upon conviction, would result in a fine of up to £20,000 
or up to six months imprisonment or both.  

 

Right of Appeal  

Applicants or any person who has made a relevant representation who is 
dissatisfied with this decision or the imposition of any condition or restriction 
has the right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of the date on 
which they are notified of the decision. 

 
 
Signed:  

 [Name] 
Chair of Licensing Sub-Committee 

  
Date:  

 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 20



The 4 Licensing Objectives 
 
 
 

To promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 
 
 
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
2. Public Safety 
 
3. Prevention of public nuisance 
 
4. Protection of children from harm. 

Agenda Item 5
Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                                                
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  

22 Jan 2013 

 

SUBJECT LICENSING ACT 2003 – A hearing called to determine an 
application for a review of a premises licence for The White 
Hart, 125 Dunstable Street, Ampthill, MK45 2NG  

REPORT OF Head Of Service Public Protection  
 

Contact Officers; dave.mcbain@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
 

 
1. The Application 

 
 1.1 An application has been submitted by Public Protection as a 

Responsible Authority. A Copy of the application is attached as 
Appendix ‘A’ of this report.  
 

 1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                   

Activity Current Provision The Application 
Indoor sporting 
events, Live & 
Recorded Music, 
Late night 
refreshment. 
Facilities for 
making music & 
dancing. Supply 
of alcohol (on and 
off the premises) 

 

Mon – Thurs 10:00hrs to 
00:00hrs 
Fri – 10:00hrs to 02:00hrs 
Sat –10:00hrs to 01:00hrs 
Sun –11:00hrs to 23:30hrs 
 
Non Standard - A further 
additional hour every 
Christmas Eve & Boxing Day. 
To reflect New Years Eve/Day 
hours. 

To review the 
existing 
authorisation with 
regard to the 
Prevention of Public 
nuisance 

Hours of opening Mon – Thurs 10:00hrs to 
00:30hrs 
Fri – 10:00hrs to 02:30hrs 
Sat – 10:00hrs to 01:30hrs 
Sun – 11:00hrs to 00:00hrs 
Non Standard – As above 

 

 
A copy of the existing Premises Licence is attached as Appendix ‘B’  
 

 1.3 Location 
 
The premise is situated on the main through route and close to a mini 
roundabout complex in the Town centre. Other retail properties are 
situated around this area. There is some residential property within the 
nearby surroundings. A small public space, with a local monument, is 
situated nearby. There is a large supermarket with ‘off’ licence 
authorisation situated just over 100 metres away to the North of the 
premises. An additional ‘off’ licensed premise is situated within 100 
metres of the premises to the North East The nearest ‘on’ licensed 
premises are in excess of 100 metres from the premise and to the North 
and the South.  
 
A copy of the location map is attached as Appendix ‘C’. 

Agenda Item 6
Page 23



 1.4 Relevant History 
 
The premise is an Ancient Coaching Inn and has been situated in the 
centre of Ampthill for many years. It previously held a Justices Licence 
under the Licensing Act 1964. The Justices licence under that Act was 
held by the present Designated Premises Supervisor. A valid application 
for a conversion and variation of a premises licence for the property, 
under the Licensing Act 2003, was received by Mid Bedfordshire 
Council on 25th July 2005. Following representations from Bedfordshire 
Police and local residents a hearing to determine the application was 
called and held on 26th September 2005. The licence was granted with 
additional conditions being attached by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
These can be viewed in the Premises Licence at Annex 3 – 
“Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority”. 
Further additional conditions to support the licensing objective of ‘The 
protection of children from harm’ have recently been added to the 
premises licence by way of a minor variation application. These can be 
viewed at Annex 2 – “Conditions consistent with the Operating 
Schedule”. 
 

 2. Representations from the responsible Authorities 

Police – Report attached as Appendix ‘D’  
Children’s Services –  No comments 
Other – No reply 
 

 3. Interested Parties 
 
10x representations in support of the application, from interested parties, 
have been received. These can be viewed as Appendix ‘E’. 
 

 4. Licensing Policy 
 

Members’ attention is drawn to the Council’s Licensing Policy, in 
particular section 7.0. Licensing Functions. The relevant licensing 
objective ‘The Prevention of Public nuisance’ can be viewed at 
section 7.3.   
 

 5. Secretary of State’s Guidance 
 
The sub committee must have regard to the Secretary of State’s 
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 as 
amended in October 2012. In particular Sections 2.18 to 2.24 on pages 
14 & 15 relating to ‘The Prevention of Public nuisance’ objective. 
 

 6. Observation and General Guidance 
 
The Sub-Committee must consider the application and any submissions 
made in writing, and determine the application.  
The options available are: 

• Take no action (this may include an informal warning) 

• To modify the licence to include conditions that it considers are 
necessary for the promotion of the Licensing objectives – this 
includes altering or omitting any existing condition (including a 

Agenda Item 6
Page 24



reduction of hours) within the operating schedule and/or adding any 
new conditions  

• To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

• To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor from the licence 

• To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 

• To revoke the licence 
 
The Sub-Committee determination must be based upon:- 

• The merits of the review application and the representations 
(including supporting information) presented by all the parties 

• The steps that are necessary for promotion of the four Licensing 
objectives 

• The Policy of the Licensing Authority 
The Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the Home Office 
under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 

  The Sub-Committee must provide clear and relevant reasons for 
their decision 

 
Background Papers:  Licensing Act 2003,  
                                      Home Office Guidance s182 
                                      Central Bedfordshire Council Licensing Policy 
Location of Papers:    Licensing Team, Dunstable   
File Reference:            2000318 

Agenda Item 6
Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
Page 27



Agenda Item 6
Page 28



Agenda Item 6
Page 29



Agenda Item 6
Page 30



Agenda Item 6
Page 31



Agenda Item 6
Page 32



Agenda Item 6
Page 33



Agenda Item 6
Page 34



Agenda Item 6
Page 35



Agenda Item 6
Page 36



Agenda Item 6
Page 37



Agenda Item 6
Page 38



Agenda Item 6
Page 39



Agenda Item 6
Page 40



Agenda Item 6
Page 41



Agenda Item 6
Page 42



Agenda Item 6
Page 43



Agenda Item 6
Page 44



Agenda Item 6
Page 45



Agenda Item 6
Page 46



Agenda Item 6
Page 47



Agenda Item 6
Page 48



Agenda Item 6
Page 49



Agenda Item 6
Page 50



Agenda Item 6
Page 51



Agenda Item 6
Page 52



Information to support an application for the review of the premises licence

Premises: White Hart Hotel, 125 Dunstable Street, Ampthill, Beds .

Officer: Alan Stone

Date: 7th December 2012

I am a Technical Officer in the Public Protection Team of Central Bedfordshire Council and

therefore considered to be a representative of the responsible authority. I seek a review of the

above premises licence as I consider that those responsible are causing a public nuisance and

failing to promote one of the four licensing objectives.

1. Premises Licence Details

The current premises licence for the White Hart was granted on the 19th April 2012, following a

minor variation to the layout, to Punch Taverns plc, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton

Upon Trent, Staffordshire DE14 2WF. The designated premises supervisor (DPS) is a Mr Salik

Miah.

The permitted activities for this premises are: Indoor sporting events; Live and recorded music;

Performance of dance; Late night refreshment (indoors); Facilities for making music; Dancing

(indoors) and similar and; the supply of alcohol (on and off premises). The premises license

authorises the carrying out of licensable activities between the following hours:

Monday to Thursday 10.00hrs to 00.00hrs

Friday 10.00hrs to 02.00hrs

Saturday 10.00hrs to 01.00hrs

Sunday 11.00hrs to 23.30hrs

The opening hours of the premises are:

Monday to Thursday 10.00hrs to 00.30hrs

Friday 10.00hrs to 02.30hrs

Saturday 10.00hrs to 01.30hrs

Sunday 11.00hrs to 00.00hrs

Agenda Item 6
Page 53



The premises licence was granted following a hearing in 2005 and a number of conditions

relating to public nuisance were imposed on the license in Annex 3. These conditions include:

No noise from music should be audible within adjacent noise sensitive premises;

All doors and windows to be kept closed during regulated entertainment events;

No admission or re-admission to the premises is allowed after 23.30;

A minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors will be on duty on Friday and Saturday

nights from 21.00 hours to the terminal hour and;

The provision of live/recorded music, performance of dance, the provision of facilities for

making music or providing dancing is limited to the interior of the premises

2. Location of the Premises

The premises are located to the south of the double mini roundabouts serving Church Street,

Dunstable Street, Bedford Street and Woburn Street in Ampthill. The main access to the

premises is offered from Dunstable Street via an alleyway leading to the cellar bar, main bar

and car park. To the immediate East, North and West of the premises are commercial

properties, at ground floor level although there is some living accommodation above. Slightly

further afield than this, there are many residential properties along all roads leading from the

junctions and from these residential premises Public Protection has 4 main complainants:

Complainant A – Dunstable Street, approximately 75m to the south west

Complainant B – Dunstable Street, immediate vicinity

Complainant C – Dunstable Street, immediate vicinity

Complainant D – Woburn Street, approximately 50m to the north west

A plan of the site is attached to this information.

3. Complaint History of Premises from 2006 up until 2012

The White Hart Hotel has been the subject of many complaints over the recent past. Some

have resulted in evidence being gathered to substantiate a problem, whilst others have been

resolved with an initial contact either by the Council or the complainant and some were

Agenda Item 6
Page 54



unsubstantiated. A brief summary of the complaints received from 2006 to 2012 are detailed

below.

Complaint of 17th July 2006 by Local Resident (Complainant A)

A complaint was received alleging loud music emanating from the cellar bar building on

Friday and Saturday nights. Following an investigation in to the allegation, a noise

abatement notice was served on the DPS requesting that the nuisance be abated. The

noise was mainly escaping via the roof structure of this part of the premises and as a

result, ultimately resulted in works being undertaken to reduce noise breakout. A false

ceiling was constructed and insulation placed on top. As a result of these works, the

noise from music emanating from the premises was reduced, however, on occasions we

still received complaints. This was found to be a result of the door to the cellar bar being

propped open when events were in progress. On meeting with the DPS this matter was

resolved at this time.

Complaint of 9th October 2007 by Local Resident (Complainant B)

A complaint was received by the Council alleging loud music from a disco in a room

adjacent to the main bar (the Tudor Room) of the White Hart Hotel mainly on Friday and

Saturday nights. It was agreed that the complainant approach the designated premises

in pursuit of a resolution to the matter. This approach seemingly worked as the

complaint did not wish to pursue the matter at this stage.

Complaint of the 26th February 2008 by Local Resident (Complainant B)

A further complaint was received from Complainant B alleging that the situation has

deteriorated. They advised that on the weekend that had just passed noise was audible

in their property on both Friday and Saturday nights and they thought that approaching

the DPS again would be futile. I made contact with Mr Miah and a meeting was

arranged between Mr Miah, the police licensing officer, the local beat officer and myself.

This duly occurred on 5th March 2008 and I explained what actions I could take and

offered advice on noise mitigation measures that could be employed to improve the

situation. As a result, some works were undertaken to a window adjacent to the

complainant’s property to reduce the amount of noise escaping. Further investigations

Agenda Item 6
Page 55



found that these works, allied to a reduction in volume and bass levels, resulted in the

noise issues being resolved at this time and the case was closed.

Complaint of the 3rd December 2008 by Local Resident – (Complainant C)

A complaint was received from complainant C alleging noise and disturbance from

music, people on the premises and from people leaving the premises. I advised that I

would visit to discuss with the DPS and the Police licensing officer whilst also requesting

that the complainant keep a note of when they were disturbed by any noise from the

premises. This meeting was duly arranged on 9th December 2008 and all matters were

discussed. The DPS asserted that improvements would be made.

When the complainant was contacted in January they claimed that the noise from the

premises had improved and that they were satisfied with the situation as it currently

stood.

Complaint of the 2nd April 2009 by Local Resident– Complainant B

Complainant A complained again regarding noise from music from the main bar area on

Friday and Saturday nights. Following a brief investigation, no evidence was gathered to

substantiate the complaint and the complaint was duly closed.

Complaint of the 16th September 2010 by Local Resident– Complainant B

A further complaint was received about music from recorded music in the Tudor Room

and following an investigation in to this allegation it was considered that noise amounting

to a statutory nuisance was witnessed and a noise abatement notice was duly served on

the DPS. On this occasion, it was found that noise was emanating from the treated

window serving the Tudor room again and the window in the kitchen area. Advice was

given in this regard and works were undertaken to address this matter. Following the

works, the noise situation improved and no further complaints were received.

Complaint of the 5th June 2011 by Local Resident– Complainant A

A complaint was received via the out of hours service at 02.50 hours on 5th June 2011

alleging loud music from the White Hart public house. There was a temporary event

notice in place for this event which was due to finish at 03.00 hours. The officer on duty

Agenda Item 6
Page 56



on this occasion did not attend but on calling the complainant after 03.00 hours

ascertained that the noise had indeed stopped. Following this event, contact was made

with both the DPS and the area manager for Punch Taverns plc who were advised and

reminded of their responsibilities. No further complaints were received at this time.

4. Complaint of the 4th March 2012 – Complainant A

Summary of Complaint & Investigation of Public Protection

March 2012

A complaint of loud music was received by Central Bedfordshire Council at 00.30 hours on

the 4th March 2012 regarding the White Hart Hotel in Ampthill via the out of hours service.

The complainant alleged that the music had been ongoing since 22.30 hours on the 3rd

March 2012 and that it was preventing the complainant from sleeping. The officer on duty

was unable to attend but telephoned the public house a couple of times but the call was not

answered. The complaint was referred to the public protection team on the Monday

morning.

The complainant lives in a property in Dunstable Street in Ampthill, bedroom windows are at

the rear and face the cellar bar and there is direct line of site situated some 75m away.

Public Protection were aware that a Temporary Event Notice was in place for the following

weekend which was for recorded music until 03.00 hours and so the complainant was

contacted and asked to call the out of hours number for a call out should noise from the

event be a problem. A complaint was duly received at 23.30 hours on the 10th March 2012

and I arrived at the White Hart Hotel premises around 1.10am. The music was extremely

loud with loud bass being prevalent and there is no doubt that this represented a statutory

nuisance in my opinion. I approached the complainant and spoke with her at the rear of her

property at 0115 at which point the music was still very clearly audible with extremely loud

bass levels – and this was around 75 metres away. I visited the White Hart Hotel and spoke

with Salik Miah at the entrance to the premises at around 1.25am and requested that the

music volume be reduced. Having waited at a monitoring location (the car park to the rear

of 111 Dunstable Street) for around 5 to 10 minutes there was no noticeable difference in

volume or bass levels. I approached the premises and spoke with Mr Miah again at 1.35am

and again requested that the volume be reduced and specifically the bass element. He

Agenda Item 6
Page 57



stated that he would and re-entered the premises. I waited in the car park to the rear of 111

Dunstable Street Waited until 0151 am and no significant change in levels were noticed. The

levels witnessed were considered likely to amount to a nuisance and it was not considered

necessary for internal monitoring to be conducted within the complainants property. As the

noise was considered such I left site with the intention of serving a noise abatement notice

under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 the following week.

I served a noise abatement notice on 16th March 2012 by hand and I met with Mr Miah and

discussed the levels of noise at the weekend and why the noise had become a problem at

the moment following a reasonably extended period of no complaints.

June 2012

During June 2012 complainant A called to advise that noise levels had been increasing

recently and following a quieter period following the service of the notice. It was therefore

arranged for the out of hours officers to visit on Friday 22nd June 2012 and monitor noise

levels. At 22.45 hours, on entering the premises they noted that the doors to the cellar bar

were propped open allowing noise to escape. They reminded the door staff and barman of

the conditions on the premises license relating to the doors being kept closed and advised

them to do so. This was reported to public protection on the next working day. As a result

of this breach of premises license conditions and the persistent recurring complaints, I

arranged a meeting with Mr Miah, Chris Carey (the police licensing officer at the time) and

myself to discuss the recent breach of conditions and noise which was duly held on 29th

June 2012.

At this meeting, I put forward a ‘three strike’ rule for Mr Miah for which the breach of

conditions already witnessed (doors being propped open) represented the first strike. I

indicated that any further transgressions in terms of conditions attached to the premises

license or noise emanating from the premises amounting to a statutory nuisance would lead

to the second strike and, following that the submission of an application for a review of the

premises license. I advised that careful management of the volume and bass controls

alongside keeping the doors and windows closed should be undertaken to ensure no further

problems occur. It was also advised that I would be placing the premises on the out of

hours priority list and requesting officers to proactively visit every weekend throughout the

summer where possible. This proposal as discussed at the meeting was put in writing and

sent to Mr Miah the following week.

Agenda Item 6
Page 58



I also installed noise monitoring equipment in the complainant’s house in an attempt to

obtain recordings of any noise break out from the White Hart Hotel.

July and August 2012

Routine monitoring by the out of hours officers indicated that the noise was kept under

control in the main during this period. Discussions held with complainant A during this time

corroborated this. This routine monitoring provided an opportunity to observe activities at

The White Hart Hotel, Ampthill. It was noted on numerous occasions that large numbers of

people congregate in the alley way alongside the premises, whether for al fresco drinking or

to escape the loud music inside the premises and offering space to talk, the result of which

is noise disturbance from loud talking, shouting and laughing. The music from the premises

is quite loud in the alleyway directly outside the premises which results in people talking

loudly to be heard - the inclusion of alcohol exacerbates this problem. Whilst the noise from

the people can be heard in the car park to the rear of 111 Dunstable Street and hence the

residents beyond this, it is much more noticeable along Woburn Street (the main entrance

directly faces up this road). It must also be very noticeable in the residential properties

above ground floor level on Church Street, which overlook this court yard/alleyway as these

are very close indeed. In my opinion, and the opinion of my fellow officers, the noise from

the people in the external areas of these premises causes undue disturbance to the

residents of Ampthill on occasions especially in the early hours of Saturday and Sunday

mornings when the premises are most busy and other background noise is minimal.

September 2012

At 00.54 hours on Saturday 8th September 2012 complainant A called in again to advise of

further problems with noise. They could hear music in their home and the noise was

preventing them from getting to sleep, whilst also being concerned about the effect it was

having on their children whose bedroom window also faced the premises. The officers on

duty that weekend did not attend on this occasion but, as I was on duty the following week I

arranged to visit the following Friday. On Friday 14th September around 1100 hours I

witnessed elevated noise levels as monitored in the car park to the rear of 111 Dunstable

Street and adjacent to the complainants house and considered that the music would be

audible in that house. I then entered the public house premises and noted that the doors

adjacent to the stair case leading to the upstairs restaurant/bar were propped open allowing

music noise escape. There were also a large amount of people making a lot of noise in this

Agenda Item 6
Page 59



area. This noise could be heard very clearly outside the main entrance to the premises and

along Woburn Street. I advised the security staff on duty on this evening that that door

should be closed when events were in progress and left the premises. A colleague visited

the following week on Friday 21st September 2012 and on entering the premises again noted

that the doors adjacent to the stair case leading to the upstairs restaurant/bar were propped

open again allowing music noise escape.

Having witnessed a breach of conditions on two occasions, even after staff had been

warned about the matter, I wrote to Mr Miah and informed him that I considered this to

represent the ‘second strike’ and that any further transgressions would lead to the

submission of an application to review the premises license. This letter stated that I was to

request that the out of hours officers make continued visits to the White Hart, Ampthill on

nights when there is regulated entertainment to check that conditions on the Premises

License were not being breached for the foreseeable future. A copy of this letter was sent to

the area manager at Punch Taverns plc via email.

October 2012

Public Protection then received a further complaint from complainant D who advised that

they had been disturbed by noise from music and people noise (they lived in Woburn Street)

on the 12th/13th October and 19th/20th October 2012. As a result of these persisting

allegations further visits were arranged to check against conditions on the premises license.

On speaking with the complainant they alleged two further matters which they said added to

the problems experienced. They alleged that people were admitted and re-admitted after

23.30 hours on a regular basis and that at 03.00 hours on 21st November 2012 empty

bottles were tipped into the outside waste receptacles causing a ‘colossal noise’.

As a result of these allegations further visits were undertaken in the early hours of the10th,

17th 24th November 2012 and on 1st December 2012. On all these occasion customers were

seen to be readily admitted up to 00.30 hours. Some of these late arrivals came by taxi and

some walked, mainly along Dunstable Street. This meant that additional noise was being

generated from the vehicles themselves, doors slamming or talking shouting and laughing

along the road which may not have otherwise happened, subjecting the residents of the

town centre to additional noise. Additionally, I entered the premises at 0030 hours on 17th

November 2012 and the doors adjacent to the stair case leading to the upstairs

restaurant/bar were propped open with a metal hook allowing music noise to escape. Whilst

we were there the doors were unhooked and the doors closed. There were many people

Agenda Item 6
Page 60



outside talking loudly, shouting and laughing. On standing at certain points along Woburn

Street, noise from these people along with faint music noise could be quite clearly heard.

The nature of the complaints alongside the observations made throughout the investigation

points to limited management of the premises with regards to noise and little regard for the

neighbouring residents of Ampthill. In my opinion, the noise experienced by residents

around this premises, both people noise and music, represents a public nuisance. I believe

that every opportunity has been given to the DPS to prevent this public nuisance and

manage the issues highlighted, but unfortunately, they have not been satisfactorily

addressed. It is for this reason, allied to the persistent breach of conditions and ongoing

noise breakout that we have chosen to seek a review of the premises license.

Conclusions

In seeking this review I have had consideration of the 2003 Act and associated guidance, made

judgements about what constitutes public nuisance and what is necessary to prevent it in terms

of conditions attached to specific premises licences. My consideration solely relates to

‘preventing public nuisance’, one of the 4 licensing objectives and those specific activities which

are the subject of complaint and what are deemed to be having a disproportionate and

unreasonable impact on persons living in the vicinity of the premises.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It is important to

remember that the prevention of public nuisance could therefore include low level nuisance

perhaps affecting a few people living locally as well as a major disturbance affecting the whole

community.

It has to be remembered the disturbances noted and observed usually occur during the latter

part of the evening until the early hours of the morning when residents in neighbouring

properties and surrounding area may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. On Saturday

and Sunday mornings this noise disturbance can go on until all the patrons have left at 02.30

hours and 01.30 hours respectively.

I have also been careful in my observations to ascertain that it is in fact the White Hart Hotel

that is responsible for the aforementioned nuisances. Obviously, at times noise from people

other than those at the White Hart Hotel are responsible for a level of disturbance e.g.

customers of other public houses or the general public walking past etc, but this was considered

Agenda Item 6
Page 61



insignificant. Discussions with the complainants have identified that it was accepted that some

noise would be characteristic of the area in which they lived. Indeed many other noises

observed are typical of a town centre environment and the complainant accepts these.

However, it is the frequent and persistent impact from the White Hart Hotel that they do not

accept, particular given the distance from their home where it would not be unreasonable to

expect such to be inaudible or not to alter the perception of the ambient noise.

The observations made by officers during visits to both the wider area and complainants provide

evidence of the existence of a public nuisance. The noise, from the music and also those

utilising the external areas is clearly audible a considerable distance from the premises,

considered likely to be intrusive at residential properties and likely to either prevent the

complainants getting to sleep or lead to sleep disturbance.

In addition to this there appears to be a blatant disregard or ignorance of the conditions already

attached to the premises license as repeated breaches of these conditions have been

witnessed over a number of weeks. The conditions were placed onto the premises license by a

committee hearing in 2005. These conditions were placed on the license as it was considered

that they were instrumental the promoting the four licensing objectives, in this case ‘the

prevention of public nuisance.

It is important to recognise that the promotion of licensing objectives relies heavily on a

partnership between licence holders, authorised persons, interested parties and responsible

authorities in pursuit of common aims. As an officer I have attempted to seek co-operation in

this regard having brought the matters of concern to the attention of those responsible more

than once. It is the failure to respond by those responsible to such warnings which has lead to a

decision to request a review. I consider that the following actions are required:

1. That the licensable activities which give rise to these complaints, namely live or amplified

music are suspended for a period of three months.

2. That within a period of three months from the date of any hearing that a noise control

scheme is submitted to and agreed by the Local Licensing Authority. This should

consider, the suitability of the venue, its limitations and subsequent recommendations to

control noise from live and/or recorded and from people using the external areas. Any

mitigation and/or control measures arising from such shall be implemented within 1

month of approval and thereafter maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the

approved details.

Agenda Item 6
Page 62



3. That the terminal hours for live music and recorded music be reduced to 24.00hrs on

Friday and Saturday nights.

4. That suitable conditions are imposed preventing the use of the external areas beyond

23.00hrs. (For example: The use of areas external to the premises for the consumption

of alcohol, other refreshment or food must cease by 23:00 hours).

5. The placing of bottles into receptacles external to the premises must not take place
between 19:00 and 09:00 hours.

I believe that this response is proportionate in terms of protecting Public Nuisance and

promoting the licensing objective.

Agenda Item 6
Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT 1990, Section 80

Abatement Notice in respect of Noise Nuisance

To: Mr Salik Miah

of The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street, Ampthill, Bedfordshire, MK45 2NG

TAKE NOTICE that under the provision of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 the CENTRAL
BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL ("the Council"), being satisfied of the likely occurrence of noise amounting
to a statutory nuisance under section 79(1)(g) of that Act at:

The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street, Ampthill, Bedfordshire, MK45 2NG

within the District of the said Council arising from:

AMPLIFIED MUSIC

WHEREAS YOU are the person responsible for the said nuisance the Council HEREBY PROHIBIT the
occurrence of the same with immediate effect from the service of this notice, and for that purpose require
you to:

ABATE THE NUISANCE

THIS is a notice to which paragraph (2) of regulation 3 of the Statutory Nuisance (Appeals) Regulations
1995 applies and, in consequence, in the event of an appeal this notice shall NOT be suspended until the
appeal has been abandoned or decided by the Court, as, in the opinion of the Council, the expenditure
which would be incurred by any person in carrying out works in compliance with this notice before any
appeal has been decided would not be disproportionate to the public benefit to be expected in that period
from such compliance.

IFwithout reasonable excuse you contravene or fail to comply with any requirement of this notice you will be
guilty of an offence under section 80(4) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and on summary
conviction will be liable to a fine not exceeding level 5 on the Standard Scale, together with a further fine of
an amount equal to one-tenth of that level for each day on which the offence continues after conviction. A
person who commits an offence on industrial, trade or business premises will be liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

The Council may also take proceedings in the High Court for securing the abatement, prohibition or
restriction of the nuisance.

16
th
March 2012 (Signed) ...............................................................

Technical Officer
(The officer appointed for this purpose)

address for all communications: Public Protection, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford, Beds, SG17 5TQ

NB A person served with this notice may appeal against the notice to a magistrates' court within 21 days beginning with the date on

which it was served. See the Statutory Nuisance (Appeals) Regulations 1995.

Agenda Item 6
Page 65



The Statutory Nuisance (Appeals) Regulations 1995 provide as follows:-

APPEALS UNDER SECTION 80(3) of the ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT 1990 ("the 1990 Act")

2. (1) The provisions of this regulation apply in relation to an appeal brought by any person under section 80(3) of the 1990 Act (appeals to magistrates) against an

abatement notice served upon him by a local authority.

(2) The grounds on which a person served with such a notice may appeal under section 80(3) are any one or more of the following grounds that are appropriate in the
circumstances of the particular case-
(a) that the abatement notice is not justified by section 80 of the 1990 Act (summary proceedings for statutory nuisances);
(b) that there has been some informality, defect or error in, or in connection with, the abatement notice, or in, or in connection with, any copy of the abatement notice

served under section 80A(3) (certain notices in respect of vehicles, machinery or equipment);
(c) that the authority have refused unreasonably to accept compliance with alternative requirements, or that the requirements of the abatement notice are otherwise

unreasonable in character or extent, or are unnecessary;
(d) that the time, or, where more than one time is specified, any of the times, within which the requirements of the abatement notice are to be complied with is not

reasonably sufficient for the purpose;
(e) where the nuisance to which the notice relates -

(i) is a nuisance falling within section 79(1)(a),(d),(e),(f) or (g) of the 1990 Act and arises on industrial, trade or business premises, or
(ii) is a nuisance falling within section 79(1)(b) of the 1990 Act and the smoke is emitted from a chimney, or
(iii) is a nuisance falling within section 79(1)(ga) of the 1990 Act and is noise emitted from or caused by a vehicle, machinery or equipment being used for industrial,

trade or business purposes,
that the best practical means were used to prevent, or to counteract the effects of, the nuisance;

(f) that, in the case of a nuisance under section 79(1)(g) or (ga) of the 1990 Act (noise emitted from premises), the requirements imposed by the abatement notice by
virtue of section 80(1)(a) of that Act are more onerous than the requirements for the time being in force, in relation to the noise to which the notice relates, of -
(i) any notice served under section 60 or 66 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 ("the 1974 Act") (control of noise on construction sites and from certain premises), or
(ii) any consent given under section 61 or 65 of the 1974 Act (consent for work on construction sites and consent for noise to exceed registered level in a noise

abatement zone), or
(iii) any determination made under section 67 of the 1974 Act (noise control of new buildings);

(g) that, in the case of a nuisance under section 79(1)(ga) of the 1990 Act (noise emitted from or caused by vehicles, machinery or equipment), the requirements imposed
by the abatement notice by virtue of section 80(1)(a) of the Act are more onerous than the requirements for the time being in force, in relation to the noise to which the
notice relates, of any condition of a consent given under paragraph 1 of Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 (loudspeakers in streets or roads);

(h) that the Abatement notice should have been served on some person instead of the appellant, being -
(i) the person responsible for the nuisance, or
(ii) the person responsible for the vehicle, machinery or equipment, or
(iii) in the case of a nuisance arising from any defect of a structural character, the owner of the premises, or
(iv) in the case where the person responsible for the nuisance cannot be found or the nuisance has not yet occurred, the owner or occupier of the premises;

(i) that the abatement notice might lawfully have been served on some person instead of the appellant being -
(i) in the case where the appellant is the owner of premises, the occupier of the premises, or
(ii) in the case where the appellant is the occupier of the premises, the owner of the premises,
and that it would have been equitable for it to have been so served;

(j) that the abatement notice might lawfully have been served on some person in addition to the appellant, being -
(i) a person also responsible for the nuisance, or
(ii) a person who is also an owner of the premises, or
(iii) a person who is also an occupier of the premises, or
(iv) a person who is also the person responsible for the vehicle, machinery or equipment,
and that it would have been equitable for it to have been so served.

(3) If and so far as an appeal is based on the ground of some informality, defect or error in, or in connection with, the abatement notice, or in, or in connection with, any

copy of the notice served under section 80A(3), the court shall dismiss the appeal if it is satisfied that the informality, defect or error was not a material one.

(4) Where the grounds upon which an appeal is brought include a ground specified in paragraph (2) (i) or (j) above, the appellant shall serve a copyof his notice of appeal

on any other person referred to, and the case of any appeal to which these regulations apply hemay serve a copy of his notice of appeal on anyother person having an estate

or interest in the premises, vehicle, machinery or equipment in question.

(5) On the hearing of an appeal the court may -
(a) quash the abatement notice to which the appeal relates, or
(b) vary the abatement notice in favour of the appellant, in such manner as it thinks fit, or
(c) dismiss the appeal;

and an abatement notice that is varied under sub-paragraph (b) above shall be final and shall otherwise have effect, as so varied, as if it had been so made by the local

authority.

(6) Subject to paragraph (7) below, on the hearing of appeal the court may make such order as it thinks fit -
(a) with respect to the person by whom any work is to be executed and the contribution to be made by any person towards the cost of the work, or
(b) as to the proportions in which any expenses which may become recoverable by the authority under Part III of the 1990 Act are to be borne by the appellant and by

any other person.

(7) In exercising its powers under paragraph (6) above, the court -
(a) shall have regard, as between an owner and an occupier, to the terms and conditions, whether contractual or statutory, of any relevant tenancy and to the nature

of the works required, and
(b) shall be satisfied, before it imposes any requirement thereunder on any person other than the appellant, that that person has received a copy of the notice of

appeal in pursuance of paragraph (4) above.

SUSPENSION OF NOTICE

3. (1) Where -

(a) an appeal is brought against an abatement notice served under section 80 or section 80A of the 1990 Act, and -
(b) either -

(i) compliance with the abatement notice would involve any person in expenditure on the carrying out of works before the hearing of the appeal, or
(ii) in the case of a nuisance under section 79(1)(g) or (ga) of the 1990 Act, the noise to which the abatement notice relates is noise necessarily caused in the

course of the performance of some duty imposed by law on the appellant, and
(c) either paragraph (2) does not apply, or if it is does apply but the requirements of paragraph (3) have not been met,

the abatement notice shall be suspended until the appeal has been abandoned or decided by the court.

(2) This paragraph applies where -
(a) the nuisance to which the abatement notice relates -

(i) is injurious to health, or
(ii) is likely to be of a limited duration such that suspension of the notice would render it of no practical effect, or

(b) the expenditure which would be incurred by any person in the carrying out of works in compliance with the abatement notice before any appeal has been decided

would not be disproportionate to the public benefit to be expected in that period from such compliance.

(3) Where paragraph (2) applies the abatement notice -
(a) shall include a statement that paragraph (2) applies, and that as a consequence it shall have effect notwithstanding any appeal to a magistrates' court which has

not been decided by the court, and
(b) shall include a statement as to which of the grounds set out in paragraph (2) apply.

Agenda Item 6
Page 66



Your ref:

Our ref: CB/ PNOI/12/10194

Date: 6th July 2012

Mr Salik Miah
The White Hart
125 Dunstable Street
Ampthill
Beds

MK45 2NG

Dear Mr Miah

Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part III - Statutory Nuisances
Complaints of noise arising from The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street,
Ampthill, Beds

Further to the meeting we held on Friday 29th June 2012 with you, the Police
Licensing Officer – Chris Carey and myself, I write to confirm what was discussed
and the current situation with regard to persisting noise issues at the White Hart, 125
Dunstable Street Ampthill.

As you are aware, the Temporary Event held at the White Hart on 9th March 2012 led
to the service of a noise abatement notice as a result of excessive noise emanating
from the cellar bar area of the premises. The noise was emanating from music being
played in the Cellar Bar during an event until 0300 hours. My colleague Jane Mann
and I spoke with you at around 0125 and 0135 on Sunday 11th March 2012 and on
both occasions requested that you turn the volume levels down. Following these
requests there was no noticeable change in the volume levels.

Since the service of this notice noise from the cellar bar, according to complainants
(of which there are now three in all) has been sporadic but more recently has
allegedly become louder. As a result of this apparent increase in noise level, I have
installed noise monitoring equipment in one of the complainants homes and
requested that the out of hours officers visit on both Friday and Saturday nights. It
was a visit by two officers on 22nd June 2012 which noted, on entering your
premises, that the door to the cellar bar was propped open. The doors adjacent to
the stair case leading to the upstairs restaurant/bar were also propped open. This
represents a breach of one of the conditions attached to the Premises License which
states that doors and windows should be kept closed during regulated entertainment
events.

Agenda Item 6
Page 67



2

As a result of the increased complaints and breach of conditions, I therefore propose
to give you the benefit of the doubt and suggest a three strike system, with the
breach witnessed on 22nd June representing the first strike. After three strikes I will
have no option but request of a review of the license in an attempt to reduce any
impact from noise on neighbouring residents. The recommendations in any review
could include reducing the operating hours or restricting regulated entertainment in
the cellar bar among others.

As in the meeting, I therefore request that you take such steps as are necessary to
ensure that noise does not impact on nearby residential premises. I would advise
that this can be achieved by ensuring doors are kept closed (except for ingress and
egress) and adjusting volume controls whilst routinely checking levels around your
premises. I know that this is possible as on Saturday 23rd June it remained quiet
(according to the complainants) as was last weekend following our meeting and no
recordings were made.

This week I have spoken with Edwin Mater of Punch Taverns to inform him of this
recent activity as Punch Taverns are the License Holder. I also intend that the out of
hours officers make visits to the White Hart, Ampthill on nights when there is
regulated entertainment to check that conditions on the Premises License are not
being breached for the foreseeable future.

I trust that this information is self explanatory. If, however, you have any queries or
would like any assistance in this matter then please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Alan Stone

Technical Officer

Telephone 0300 300 4388

Email alan.stone@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Cc: Edwin Mater, Business Relationship Manager, Punch Partnerships

Agenda Item 6
Page 68



Your ref:

Our ref: CB/ PNOI/12/10194

Date: 12th October 2012

Mr Salik Miah
The White Hart
125 Dunstable Street
Ampthill
Beds

MK45 2NG

Dear Mr Miah

Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part III - Statutory Nuisances
Complaints of noise arising from The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street,
Ampthill, Beds

I write with regard to ongoing investigations into noise from the White Hart, 125
Dunstable Street, Ampthill.

A you may recall on Friday 29th June 2012 the Police Licensing Officer – Chris Carey
and myself met with you at the Drovers Arms in Steppingley, to discuss persisting
noise issues at the White Hart, Ampthill.

This was ultimately as a result of the Temporary Event held at the White Hart on 9th

March 2012 led to the service of a noise abatement notice as a result of excessive
noise emanating from the cellar bar area of the premises. From the service of this
notice noise from the cellar bar, further investigations were undertaken following
continued complaints which resulted in a visit by two officers on 22nd June 2012
which noted, on entering your premises, that the door to the cellar bar was propped
open. The doors adjacent to the stair case leading to the upstairs restaurant/bar
were also propped open. This represented a breach of the conditions on the
Premises License.

As a result of this breach and the continued complaints, I suggested a ‘three strike’
system for which this breach represented the first strike, allied to the complaints and
noise monitoring. After three strikes, Public Protection, as a responsible authority
will seek a review of the Premises License in an attempt to achieve improvements
with recommendations which could include reducing the operating hours or
restricting regulated entertainment in the cellar bar among others.

Since this meeting and subsequent letter sent on 6th July 2012, the Public Protection
out of hours service has visited on a number of occasions. Over the summer months
it was noted that improvements were indeed made and noise emanating from the
White Hart was much reduced. This was confirmed by the complainants who said
that things had been much better and that they had not been unduly disturbed.

Agenda Item 6
Page 69



2

More recently we have had further complaints, indicating that the noise was
becoming problematic again. On 14th September 2012 I visited the White Hart and
noted that the doors adjacent to the stair case leading to the upstairs restaurant/bar
were propped open. My colleague, Simon Joynes visited on the following weekend
and noted again that the doors adjacent to the stair leading to the upstairs
restaurant/bar propped open on 21st September 2012. This represents further
breaches of the Premises License and as a result this represents the ‘second strike’.

Additionally, the complaints specify that music is going on past the stated hours on
the Premises License – reporting that music can be heard to 2.30am and beyond on
some occasions. I would like to remind you that regulated entertainment should be
finished by 2am on Saturday morning and 1am on Sunday morning according to the
premises license as is currently stands. Public Protection has not substantiated this
allegation, however, efforts will be made to ascertain whether this is the case and
appropriate action taken should this be so.

I have sent a copy of this letter to Edwin Mater of Punch Taverns to inform him of
this recent activity as Punch Taverns are the License Holders. I also intend that the
out of hours officers make continued visits to the White Hart, Ampthill on nights when
there is regulated entertainment to check that conditions on the Premises License
are not being breached for the foreseeable future.

Please be aware that if any further breaches of the Premises License conditions are
witnessed or if music amounting to a statutory nuisance is witnessed by an officer of
the Council then I will have no option but to request a review of the Premises
License.

I trust that this information is self explanatory. If, however, you have any queries or
would like any assistance in this matter then please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Alan Stone

Technical Officer

Telephone 0300 300 4388

Email alan.stone@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Cc: Edwin Mater, Business Relationship Manager, Punch Partnerships

Agenda Item 6
Page 70



Agenda Item 6
Page 71



Agenda Item 6
Page 72



Agenda Item 6
Page 73



Agenda Item 6
Page 74



Agenda Item 6
Page 75



Agenda Item 6
Page 76



Agenda Item 6
Page 77



Agenda Item 6
Page 78



Agenda Item 6
Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
Page 83



Agenda Item 6
Page 84



Agenda Item 6
Page 85



Agenda Item 6
Page 86



Agenda Item 6
Page 87



Agenda Item 6
Page 88



Agenda Item 6
Page 89



Agenda Item 6
Page 90



Agenda Item 6
Page 91



Agenda Item 6
Page 92



Agenda Item 6
Page 93



Agenda Item 6
Page 94



Agenda Item 6
Page 95



Agenda Item 6
Page 96



Agenda Item 6
Page 97



Agenda Item 6
Page 98



Agenda Item 6
Page 99



Agenda Item 6
Page 100



Agenda Item 6
Page 101



Agenda Item 6
Page 102



Agenda Item 6
Page 103



Agenda Item 6
Page 104



Agenda Item 6
Page 105



Agenda Item 6
Page 106



Agenda Item 6
Page 107



Agenda Item 6
Page 108



Agenda Item 6
Page 109



Agenda Item 6
Page 110



Agenda Item 6
Page 111



Agenda Item 6
Page 112


	Agenda
	4 Licensing Procedure
	5 Licensing Objectives
	6 LICENSING ACT 2003 - A hearing called to determine an application for a review of a premises licence for The White Hart, 125 Dunstable Street, Ampthill, MK45 2NG
	Appendix 'A' White Hart review application
	App 'A' White Hart review statement
	App 'A' White Hart TEN S80 stat notice
	App 'A' White Hart 060712
	App 'A' White Hart 101012
	Appendix 'B' White Hart Ampthill
	Appendix 'C' White Hart Ampthill
	Appendix 'D' White Hart Ampthill
	Appendix 'E' White Hart Ampthill


